## FILED Court of Appeals Division II State of Washington 1/7/2025 1:18 PM

### FILED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON 1/7/2025 BY ERIN L. LENNON CLERK

Case #: 1037732

# SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

NO.\_\_\_\_\_

(COA No. 59690-3-11)

Philippe Chantreau, Respondent

vs.

Helen Nowlin ///, Petitioner

# **PETITION FOR REVIEW**

Helen Nowlin, WSBA #40086 Tribal Consultancy in Environment & Law, LLC PO Box 55 Glenoma, WA 98336 <u>tribalconsultantsinfo@gmail.com</u> Attorney for Isabelle Chantreau

#

# I. INTRODUCTION AND IDENTITY OF PETITIONER

This issue was always about Isabelle, a young disabled woman who is trying to get her legal rights enforced against her non-paying parent. The court system has allowed him to abandon her financially. This is not discretionary because the original Petition's record proved her disability beyond any doubt. Respondent originally agreed with the findings and diagnosis in 2019 by authorizing his signature. The federal government - Social Security and Veterans Administrations and the State of Washington agree to use the same medical criteria to make disability decisions. The purpose of the 2023 Petition was to update the Courts.

The evidence Washington State requires to document Isabelle's disability is an individualized assessment and Report done by a Washington-certified school psychologist, which the original Petition provided [**CP 1-17**]. Her father received Notice on June 01, 2023, and later, after obtaining counsel, did not see fit to timely Answer in the 20 days as RCW 26.09.175

(4) requires. Under normal circumstances, the Court would not have ruled in their favor or allowed baseless arguments to continue because they had not followed the Court's rules. The Court did not coincidentally strike Helen Nowlin's Motion for Default. It was stricken based on well-timed false testimony and the Court's refusal to acknowledge key facts in the record.

This Court's leading decision on the duty for postmajority support remains in <u>Childers</u> (89 Wn.2d 592) (1978). Isabelle's identified Intellectual Disability establishes the dependency. The Court should ordinarily appoint or require a parent to pay for legal services on behalf of an adult-dependent person. In this case, Helen Nowlin, Esq, is Isabelle's mother and represents Isabelle's rights and interests in the foregoing matter [<u>Childer</u> @ 595]. Without financial means, I am the only one who would advocate for her. Ordinarily, the Court should order for costs, fees, and any legally entitled disbursements in favor of the child / dependent's attorney. [RCW 26.09.110, *In re Marriage Waggener* 13 Wn. App. 911, 915 (Wash. Ct. App.

1975)]. COA-II relies on RCW 26.09.140 [Opinion, pg 4, 7],
recognizing me as Isabelle's attorney, then denies the \$3800.00
previously requested from the July 20, 2023 hearing. This
Petition also relies on the American Disabilities Act and RCW
49.60 to pursue federal rights as necessary.

### II. COURT OF APPEALS DECISIONS

Isabelle and her counsel seek an appeal from the Order denying the Appellant's Motion for Reconsideration and Publication on December 11, 2024 (<u>Appendix B</u>). This also seeks a review of the unpublished opinion filed on November 21, 2024 in Division II of the Court of Appeals affirming Clark County Superior Court's denial of the Petition for (financial) support to continue (<u>Appendix C</u>)

### III. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

1. After years of problems at Washington's institutions as residences for the developmentally disabled, the Washington legislature admitted its care was failing. The efforts of particularly wealthy fathers and their lawyers to push off the

financial burden required to meet the needs of the disabled population became a taxpayer burden, or the other parent unwilling to institutionalize his/her loved one might be considered successful. With the inbound wrecking ball and seeds of chaos represented by the Trump administration, there is no guarantee that taxpayer funding will be available or at the scale needed to support people with developmental disabilities in Washington. Where do Courts construe their authority to decide who is dependent to ignore a medical diagnosis, particularly in this case, after the COA was informed that the Secretary of the Veterans Affairs determined, based on the diagnosis and assessment Report, that Isabelle is permanently disabled and incapable of self-support?

2. What is the proper process of the Court if one attorney accuses the other attorney of failure to serve under CR5, and the record shows the Attorney charged did certify service by mail, with proof of service in the Court's record? Under CR 5, the literal interpretation of this procedural rule

applies to both attorneys, not just to one. Neither controls the U.S. Postal Service. How can any Court penalize any attorney when the proof of service is in the Court's record under CR5? IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. Factual Background

Re: Issue #1: In Washington, parents have a duty to support dependent children even adults if disabled. [CP: 14, paragraph 16] (*Childers* @ 794) when the evidence *proves* the disability is permanent and renders the person unable to live independently and/or unable to secure financial independence because of the disability. [CP: 14, paragraph 17] [Appellant's Brief, pg 36-37, 39] Standard of proof is set by the State.

Who decides the disability (what type and severity) is a question for qualified experts, not the Court. The court needed to see even more of the relevant law. RCW 71A.10.020 (6) defines Intellectual Disability, citing in part:

"<u>developmental disability to mean a disability attributable to</u> <u>intellectual disability, cerebral palsy, epilepsy, autism or another</u> <u>neurological or other condition of an individual found by the</u> <u>Secretary....</u> which disability originates before the individual attains age eighteen (18), which has continued or can be expected to continue indefinitely, and which constitutes a substantial limitation to the individual."

RCW 71A.10.020 (6) & (13) identifies the Secretary of the Washington Department of Health and Human Services (herein, hereafter "Secretary") as having the authority to define disabilities and when a disability meets the legal definition (that then triggers additional legal rights), not the Courts.

WAC 388-823-0200, the Secretary promulgates <u>how a</u> <u>person proves</u> Intellectual Disability or equivalent, and the following are required as a set of criteria: 1) <u>condition must</u> <u>have onset before the age 18; 2) diagnosis must be made by a</u> <u>licensed psychologist, a Washington certified school</u> <u>psychologist, or other school psychologists</u> (if a diagnosis was documented from another state); and 3) <u>the diagnosis must be</u> <u>documented in an acceptable diagnostic report</u>. All these factors are met in the original Petition for Modification/update of the Court filed on May 25, 2023 [CP: 6-8, 15-16]

Isabelle's Assessment Report was signed on the same day by both parents on 01-30-2019. [CP: 6-8]. Respondent waived any challenge to the Petition in 2023 because of acquiescence and waiver by estoppel. [Motion for Reconsideration, pg 10] COA – II attempted to accommodate Respondent's acquiescence in saying: "Chantreau was aware of and (instead of using but) did not challenge the evaluator's assessment." [Opinion, pg 5] COA-II's use of the word "and" instead of "but" is an essential point. Under law & equity, Respondent's failure to bring a challenge on or before Isabelle's 18<sup>th</sup> birthday should have been construed by the Court to favor financial support for Isabelle's benefit. COA-II treated this case differently (to be discussed).

However, Respondent's consent to his daughter's disability is not part of the evidence required under the RCW/WACs. The State does not consider non-medical based opinions. Non-medical opinions should not be persuasive in a court of law either.

WAC 388-823-0740 states that the Secretary promulgates the evidence necessary to prove adaptive skills limitations for the purpose "to be the (measured) substantial limitation" to the individual (Infra, definition pg 5). A petition arose to meet this standard and provided the required evidence. Instead, the trial court TOTALLY ignored the issue and failed to give Isabelle her day in Court through her legal representative. Petitioners only needed to provide assessment and scoring for evidence of adaptive skill limitation [CP 6-8]. Under WAC 388-823-0210, Isabelle met the definition of having substantial limitations with her assessed score governed under WAC 388-823-0740. WAC 388-823-0740 specifies the qualifying score, which is not the court's role or decision; Isabelle's proof is in the record [CP: 6-8] The Court system lacks the authority to take decision-making rights away from the legislature or the Secretary. This could be unconstitutional.

This case is solely based on the right to post-majority financial support because of DISABILITY and the state

required evidence of a valid medical diagnosis, individualized assessment, and expert opinion. [CP: 15-16] [Appellant's Appeal Brief, pg 45] - a standard set under the WAC. In the trial court's July 20, 2023 denial of the original Petition, Isabelle's disability is not mentioned or referenced. The trial court implies having magical authority; thus, COA – II, by affirming the trial court, a medical opinion in the Court's record is supplanted with its own. It is not clear where this authority is located. A denial is equivalent to altering what Washington State requires from the Petitioner, or anyone else, as to what evidence proves a developmental disability (see supra), then ignoring what the Petitioner successfully presented to the Court. Is this court authorized to allow total child abandonment?

The Childer's factors do not apply in this case. The Court cannot make them apply. Doing so would be plain error when a Petition for post-majority support does not involve educational support. Isabelle's future educational opportunities were not a topic in the original Petition filed on May 25, 2023 but reserved. Under RCW 26.09 the Court can order support to continue past a child's majority. <u>However, the trial court and COA lack the</u> <u>authority to define who has a disability when, as in this case,</u> <u>the disability is the sole relevant factor establishing</u> <u>DEPENDENCY</u>. A dependent child, even if in the post-majority situation, means under Washington common law, financial obligations to assist with expenses continue.

The Appellate Court refused to consider and admit new information about the Secretary of Veterans Affairs who found Isabelle proved a permanent disability that rendered her incapable of self-support, to exceed their authority when it denied the appeal. Based on grounds of comity, federal supremacy under the U.S. Constitution, and common notions that who or what comes first makes the decision, res judicata applies. COA-II failed to properly consider the new information [**Reply Brief, pg 7-8**], and V.A's decision is proof the trial court failed to consider the medical Report and diagnosis in the record and was ("<u>manifestly unreasonable or based on untenable grounds or</u> <u>untenable reasons</u>" – **Opinion, pg 4**) requiring reversal.

Isabelle's eligibility for special education services gave her the right to age out of high school at 21, under WAC 172A-01034(2)(g) and Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, 20 U.S.C. § 1400 (2004). The common language in Washington divorce decrees require parental support to continue "until 18 or the child leaves high school." Isabelle's disability, not the court's decree procured these rights (in 2024 a federal court held WA disabled students can stay in public school until age 22). Isabelle's disability itself is why she would stay in public school. However, Isabelle did not acquire a high school diploma and could not surpass fifth-grade capabilities at complete mastery [Motion for Reconsideration, filed on December 06, 2024; Denied on December 11, 2024, pg 1].

The trial court was unaware of the disability when the final 2009 support order was issued. Isabelle was too young for an accurate assessment at that time. Neither was there a prior modification request before 2023. Based on WAC, the sole thing that matters for Washington law purposes is confirmation that the onset was during childhood. <u>The 2019 individual assessment</u> <u>achieves that confirmation</u>.

**Issue #2:** Motion to Reconsider, Motion for Sanctions, and ER 201 (d) filed in the Court on July 27, 2023, were mailed in compliance with CR 5. <u>COA-II fails to cite the Service of motions by mail, governed under CR 5 (b)(2), and is what applies in this case</u>. The false, misleading written comment [CP: 80, 82] by Manesh, Respondent's lawyer, provides no evidence in the record that supports her claim of "unserved" pleadings [CP:80, 82]. Under CR 5 (b) (2) (B) proof of service is complete when filed in the Court's record (by an attorney). Without evidence of non-compliance in the record of a procedural rule and CR 5 is a procedural rule, the Court lacked authority to strike the

documents on September 28, 2023. As unopposed motions, the Court should grant them.

General position of COA-II on CR 5 is held in *O'Neill v Jacobs*, 77 Wn. App. 366 (Wash. Ct. App. 1995) and treats my situation differently. COA-II applied substantial compliance with a procedural rule, such as CR5. Substantial compliance applies in this case based on what the evidence in the record supports.

Total of (3) documents, (3) Certificate of Services dated July 25, 2023 in one - packet with the same tracking service #: 7020 3160 0000 7666 2602 and received on July 27, 2023, with a copy to McCray's agent by first-class, prepaid mail (with no additional services). **CR 5 (2) (A)** states service is proper **by use of mail service**: "If service is made by mail, the papers shall be deposited in the post office addressed to the person on whom they are being served, with the postage prepaid. The service shall be deemed complete upon the third day following the day upon which they are placed in the mail...." The trial court received its copy within

two days, so unless a diabolical, unforeseen circumstance occurred, a party in the same city should have received theirs.

**CR 5 (2) (B)** affirms that <u>proof of service</u> of all papers permitted to be mailed, as well as written acknowledgment of service filed in the Court is <u>proof of service when done by an attorney</u>. As a bar-certified attorney, I can rely on my Certificates of Service as PROOF OF SERVICE under CR5. As a bar-certified attorney, I shouldn't be treated as an outsider by any court system.

Manesh writes: "<u>After checking OnBase around August 25<sup>th</sup>, I</u> <u>saw other Motions filed 7/27 that were never served to my office</u> <u>despite the 8/3 Certificate of Service (false statement;</u> <u>certificate of service verifiably dated on 7/25</u>) stating such.</u> <u>When I contacted Respondent, she stated she sent her pleadings</u> to the Court and knew of "no such requirement" to serve us the <u>pleadings filed 7/27</u>."

Manesh offered "Exhibit A" [CP:82], reproduced for COA-II in Motion for Reconsideration. It is an exhibit which

does not support Manesh's claim. This Court can review Manesh's exhibit and sole source of evidence against Helen Nowlin, Esq. [See Appendix A]. Instead of reading the Exhibit, the Court defames Helen Nowlin, Esq, again, without any "competent" evidence or proof in the record. It is a procedural rule, and the evidence in the record supports my compliance. (Lee v. WESTERN PROCESSING COMPANY, 667 P. 2d 638 - Wash: Court of Appeals, 1st Div. 1983). CR5 also applies to both parties (See Supra). The following is what the email exchange between Manesh and my home office substantiates. Helen Nowlin wrote (to Manesh):

This exchange does not support Manesh's claim that Helen Nowlin, Esq. knew of "no service requirement" [**Opinion**, **pg 6**], and that none exists. However, CR5 does not yet require the

<sup>&</sup>quot;Good afternoon, by my election, I sent all documents to the court by paying extra, by certified tracking and/or a third-party carrier. YOUR OFFICE WAS SERVED BY REGULAR FIRST-CLASS MAIL WITH THE EXCEPTION OF THE MOST RECENT documents (by third-party carrier) because you provided a stated time to respond." [Appendix A]

purchase of additional mail services, and additional services are not a requirement.

Rules are given ordinary meaning [In re Stoker, 118 Wn.2d, 792 P.2d 986 (1992)] It is this Court's role to apply CR 5 equally between two attorneys or change the rule, specifically as proof of service under CR 5 (2)(B).

Helen Nowlin and Isabelle attended September 28, 2023, hearing by Zoom [**VRP**, pg 5, lines 17-25]. To defer to the fact finder on "witness credibility" and the persuasiveness of the evidence on a procedural rule is not standard even for COA-II under *O'Neill*. There is no basis to defer when the competing evidence supports service was complete and proof of service filed [Opinion, pg 6]. The doctrine of substantial compliance is an equitable remedy under procedural rules. It must continue when the Court, through its rule, allows reliance on the U.S. Postal Service. Courts can't presume attorneys violate their rules of professional conduct (without actual evidence in support). **Procedural History** Helen Nowlin filed a motion for reconsideration, based on the record, and denied on 12-11-24. Helen Nowlin seeks review from this Court based on all the grounds in the record and this Petition.

### V. ARGUMENT

# A. This Court Should Grant Review under RAP 13.4 (3) & (4) because Washington State law provides for postmajority support when the onset of the disability occurs in childhood, and the child remains dependent on parental support.

The Washington Legislature has established the standards of proof and evidence required to settle the disability issue, and the Petition settled the dependency. It met or exceeded the evidentiary burden the State requires. Secretary of Veterans Affairs decided Isabelle suffers from a permanent disability and is unable to support herself (without aid and assistance)

[Motion for Reconsideration, pg 7]. Res judicata bound COA-

II while failing to consider this added information or didn't

correctly apply it. "In appropriate circumstances, a party may

waive a known right." See Wilson v. Horsley, 137 Wn.2d 500,

<u>510, 974 P.2d 316</u> (1999)" cited in *Pulich v. Dame*, 99 Wn.

App. 558, 564 (Wash. Ct. App. 2000). Respondent's signature

and approval in 2019 (of the diagnosis) waived his rights to later argue otherwise in 2023. He agreed in 2019, and until this Court suggested he could rescind his common law contractual obligation, he otherwise had continued to help support Isabelle financially. Respondent accepted service on June 01, 2023 – Summons and Petition to then fall outside of the time to respond under RCW 26.09.175 (4) with aid of his attorney which a "responding party's failure to file an answer within the time required **shall** result in the entry of a default judgment." Besides being untimely, it was also improperly served on July 11, 2023 in violation of the Summons and CR5 [CP: 42-45; Appendix A]. Why does the Court's procedure apply against one but not the other to trigger due process concerns? Helen Nowlin's documents struck could have prevented the occurrence of the September 28 hearing and the appeal if heard on the merits. It appears Respondent's lawyer filed late, then threatened she had some uncanny influence over the Court [Appellant's Appeal Brief, pg 22] and proffers evidence that

fails to support her argument of unserved pleadings under CR 5 (2) (A) & (B) [Appendix A] and couldn't prove her claim. There is defamation of Helen's character in the record, and unjust benefits granted without grounds and secured by false testimony. [Motion for Reconsideration, filed December 06, 2024, pg 15-16] A decision is based on untenable grounds or made for untenable reasons if it rests on <u>facts</u> unsupported in the record or reached by applying the wrong legal standard. *Mitchell v. Washington State Institute of Public Policy*, 153 Wn.App. 803, 821-22, 225 P.3d 280 (2009).

B. This Court Should Grant Review under RAP 13.4 (b)
(2) & (4) since it has been a while since the WA
Supreme Court has looked at CR 5 as a procedural
rule, particularly as to proof of service under CR5 (b)
(2)(B) for attorneys.

The exhibit used to support the opposing counsel's claim of "unserved papers" instead supports my Certificate and proof of service (by mail) in my recognized role by COA-II as Isabelle's attorney/advocate. My Certificates contained the wording required in CR 5, and/"or the notice "was served in a manner reasonably calculated to give notice . . ." *Saltis,* <u>94 Wn.2d at</u> <u>896</u>" *by submission in the Postal Service, O'Neill v. Jacobs,* 77 Wn. App. 366, 370 (Wash. Ct. App. 1995). Manesh claimed no injury; the record contained proof of service. Missing mail has become common since 2020.

### VI. CONCLUSION

No doctors or psychologists exist in a Court except by the Record and evidence; WAC creates the guardrails. Respondent's attorney had the burden of proof and produced an exhibit that wholly unsupported herself but supports the attorney she falsely accused. Service by mail was complete under CR 5 (b)(2) (A) & (B). Petition requests sanctions in the amount commensurate with the conduct, fees for services already requested and any other relief due.