FILED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON 2/5/2025 10:53 AM BY ERIN L. LENNON CLERK

No. 1037732

SUPREME COURT OF WASHINGTON

In re the Marriage of

PHILIPPE CHANTREAU,

Respondent,

and

HELEN NOWLIN,

Petitioner.

ANSWER TO PETITION FOR REVIEW

James Marston WSBA No. 1283 Attorney for Appellant 3508 N.E. Third Avenue Camas, WA 98607-2411 360-335-1515

ANSWER TO PETITION FOR REVIEW

I. Introduction.

This case was resolved adversely to appellant on November 23, 2024, in a unanimous, unpublished opinion of Division II, Court of Appeals. The appellant's motion for reconsideration was denied by that court two weeks later on December 11, 2024. Appellant petitioned this court for review on January 7, 2025. This short response endeavors to show that the case was correctly decided at both the trial and appellate court levels and entirely lacks the characteristics of an outcome which ought to be reviewed as a matter of discretion under RAP 13.4(b).

II. Counter-Statement of the Case and Response.

Appellant filed this case as a child support modification case but put the trial court in the highly awkward position of providing none of the detailed forms, including with them their required data, for a child support modification case.¹ Appellant candidly acknowledged that by overlooking these requirements for the provision of data to support a child support modification case she

¹ Petition to Modify Child Support. WPF FL Modify 501, 9 pages, RCW 26.09.175(1). Washington State Child Support Schedule Worksheets Proposed by _____. *, 5 pages, RCW 26.09.175(1), (2)(a); RCW 26.19.050; CCSCLCR 4.1(c)(2). Financial Declaration of _____; WPF FL All Family 131, 6 pages; RCW 26.18.220(1); CCLCR 4.1(c)(1); Sealed Financial Source Documents, WPF FL All Family 011, 9 categories of financial records; GR 22(b)(8), (g).

"may have committed an error." Br. App. 29. The trial court nevertheless did its best to understand the crux of appellant's contentions but at the last concluded in its sound discretion that appellant had not sustained her burden of showing substantially changed circumstances for modification which were not in contemplation at the time of the prior order. *In re Marriage of Arvey*, 77 Wn.App. 817, 820, 894 P.2d 1346 (1995).

When this case was originally tried as the parties' marital dissolution case at the child's age of seven years, it was shown that the child was born with abnormally low birth weight and with complications during pregnancy and that the child had most likely sustained diminished oxygenation of the brain, resulting in impairment to some extent of mental functioning. CP 7. Appellant described the child's disability as one which "is usually diagnosed during childhood and persists throughout a person's lifetime." CP 9. Indeed, the child was in special education programs throughout all of her public school educational career. However, by the time of the parties' contested child support modification case at the child's age of 21 years, the trial court's conclusion and its finding was that the degree of impairment was no different than had been

- 2 -

contemplated 14 years earlier at the trial of the underlying marital dissolution case.

The child whose status was at issue was present during at least two sessions of court during the modification case and thus could be and was personally assessed by the court. The parties at the trial of the modification case disagreed as to the extent of the child's impairment, her functioning, and her employability, but the court made its judgment tracking closer to respondent's than to appellant's claims and left unchanged the original specification as to the materially extended end date of support, which in this case was at the child's age 20 years, 11 months, after she had belatedly completed high school.

As this court need not be reminded, child support modification cases are addressed to a trial court's sound discretion and are only reversed on a clear showing of manifest abuse. *In re Marriage of Scanlon and Witrak*, 109 Wn.App. 167, 194, 34 P.3d 877 (2001). This case is an especially clear one for application of the principle, as the parties were before the trial court vying for their opposing versions as to the extent of the child's disability, and the child was in the court's presence too and judged face to face as to her functioning by the trier of fact.

- 3 -

III. Conclusion.

The decisions of the trial and appellate court are both correct. Appellant cites no basis under RAP 13.4(b) for further review by the Supreme Court, as the decision conflicts with no decision of the Supreme Court or Court of Appeals, raises no question under the state or federal constitutions, and addresses no question of substantial public interest. The petition for review by the Supreme Court should accordingly be denied.

IV. Statement Pursuant to RAP 18.17(c); Document Word Count.

The number of words contained in this document produced using word processing software, exclusive of words contained in the appendices, the title sheet, the table of contents, the table of authorities, the certificate of compliance, the certificate of service, signature blocks, and pictorial images (e.g., photographs, maps, diagrams, and exhibits) is 729.